

Multiple directorships ESG - JAK

by Perpustakaan Referensi

Submission date: 20-May-2024 10:55PM (UTC+0700)

Submission ID: 2261611467

File name: revise_review_1_-_submit.docx (294.9K)

Word count: 6477

Character count: 37743

Do Board Multiple Directorship and ESG Score Drive Firm Value? Study of Non-Financial Companies in Thailand

33

ABSTRACT

This study intends to demonstrate the impact of board busyness through board multiple directorships and ESG scores towards firm value in Thailand within the period of 2018-2022. Theoretical frameworks such as the resource dependence theory and stakeholder theory explicate the two hypotheses developed for busy directors and ESG score. A director has multiple directorships when he/she has more than three board roles in other publicly listed firms, excluding private organizations and foundations. This research's population are listed non-financial firms in Thailand Stock Exchange that has ESG score in Refinitiv database for five consecutive years during 2018 to 2022. Final data sample are 28 non-financial companies resulting in 140 observations. Directorship and board size were collected from annual reports. Panel data regression with random effect model is used, and results show there is no association between multiple directorship and firm value. On the other hand, ESG shows a positive and significant relationship towards firm value. This research supports the belief that ESG scores have a notable impact on firm value based.

Keywords: Board busyness, ESG, firm value, Tobin's Q, multiple directorships, board of director

INTRODUCTION

Previous studies have highlighted the importance and critical role of board in one firm's performance [1]. Fundamentally, an organization's success rate depends on two main factors, externally and internally. External factors encompass various aspects, such as competitive environment to political conditions where it is difficult to manipulate for the benefit of the company. Consequently, it increases a firm's need to maximize the utilization of their internal organizational structure to form a higher quality of governance. Through this research, the authors intend to analyze the effects of board multiple directorships and ESG Score on firm value.

A director's role in a company involves two pivotal duties, which is to fulfill one firm's monitoring and advisory needs against the management [51]. [50] Both academics and practitioners pay close attention to the corporate governance system within a corporation [49]. Maximizing shareholder values is the corporation's primary goal, and to ensure that the top management conducts the business in accordance with the shareholders' interest and values, the board of directors is chosen at the annual meetings as a representative of shareholders [49]. The association between board characteristics and business performance has already been extensively studied [18]. However, issues that currently rise to the topic is the ineffectiveness of monitoring duties held responsible by the directors appointed in one firm. Therefore, this paper aims to contribute to add empirical evidence on the study of characteristic of director as a component of internal corporate

governance and ESG to improve firm value in the context of emerging economies.

Extant research has documented the different results of multiple boards directorships and firm performance. Some show positive association, taking the view of director reputation hypothesis. This perspective views that a director who holds many positions with various companies helps a director paint a favorable reputation. For example, [21] found that firms with busy directors is beneficial to firm value especially for younger firms. But on the contrary, several studies have pointed out a different perspective, where board busyness shares a negative impact towards a firm's economic value [28], [19], [43], [6].

In recent years, Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) has also gained the interest and attention of researchers as it provides a degree of significance for measuring firm performance in various aspects [20]. The rise of ESG awareness increases the firms' willingness to express concern towards the external environment. This awareness is then measured by ESG as the index commonly used to measure the firm's contribution and responsibilities towards their surroundings. There is also indication of increasing number of firms reporting ESG, for example, from a mere 48 organizations disclosed their sustainability reports in 2000 to around 12,075 firms in 2017 [36]. In emerging and developing countries, the effect of ESG factors is notably significant [31]. One study also conveys how ESG intensifies customer loyalty, which brings a linear increase in the operating profit margin even though the period of analysis was during the COVID-19 pandemic [5]. Moreover, firms listed in ESG index exhibit higher firm value

Commented [A1]: Edited according to reviewer's input

Commented [A2R1]: Change "The authors" to "This study"

Commented [A3]: Edited according to reviewer's input

Commented [A4R3]: Change from "positive but not significant impact" to "there is no association"

Commented [A5]: The authors should explicitly explain research gap, novelty, and contribution of this study.

[1]. Disclosing ESG performance has improves firm values by increasing its transparency [4]. Previous research has found a positive impact of ESG performance on firm performance [30], however others found that ESG has no imp. 39 on firm performance [9]. Therefore, the direct relationship between ESG and firm value has remained inconclusive throughout the years. Therefore, following the footsteps of prior research, this paper intends to examine the ESG score and its effect on firm value.

This study uses data from non-financial firms listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) for the period of 2018 to 2022. Thailand is an appropriate study setting since Thailand is one of developing countries in Southeast Asia which has commitment in sustainability reporting. In 2017, Thailand Stock Exchange Commission (SEC) issued new Corporate Governance code, requiring firms to enhance ESG practice among publicly listed firms [40]. While [21] found that multiple directorships are a global phenomenon, there still few studies on multiple directorships in Thailand, some examples are [29]. To our knowledge, this study is one that examine busy boards and ESG score to firm market value in Thailand. This study contributes to the existing literature by offering insights into the evolving landscape of ESG performance and multiplicity of directorships in Thailand over the 2018 - 2022 period. By examining the impact of ESG score and multiple directorships to firm value, this study adds to the understanding of how sustainability practices and internal corporate governance influence market performance in developing countries.

LITERATURE REVIEW

Resource Dependence Theory

Multi-directorship boards in organizations could be viewed from either positive or negative perspective. In this paper, we use resource dependence theory to explain the benefits of multiple directorships to firm values, thus from positive effect of the characteristic. Resource dependence theory views organization as an integral part of the environment. As a strategy to minimize and absorb risks and uncertainty, the organization could benefit from its external environment. Resource dependence theory views that a director sits in multiples directorships could obtain new opportunities and helps mitigate the challenges faced from industry, or external environment [41].

According to resource dependence theory, external resources, including networks from multiple directorships, are valuable. It suggests that the benefits outweigh the disadvantages when directors sit in multiple positions during one specific

time frame. Besides the experiences, having multiple roles in outside companies facilitates directors expanding their network, which is essentially relevant to gaining new opportunities and overcoming industry challenges [41].

Stakeholder Theory

Stakeholder theory perceives firms as having multiple stakeholders, all have interconnected relationships with firms. It assumes that firms would take stakeholders' long-term objectives into consideration in addition to their own short-term goals [22]. A firm's stakeholders encompass internal and external stakeholders. This theory suggests that an organization should align their actions to fulfill the interests of stakeholders, such as investors, employees, customers, environment, and local communities. Increasing stakeholder prosperity will favor the firm's value in the long run. One of the ways to satisfy different stakeholder welfares is through ESG or sustainability reporting. By implementing ESG, an organization obtain "license to operate" from its stakeholders.

Multiple directorships

Researchers has employed various terminologies in referring multiple directorships according to extant literatures, such as busy boards [21], [16], multiple directorships [44], multiplicity of directorship [34] and over-boardedness [35] with busy directors as a popular term. In this paper, all terminologies are used interchangeably. Board multiple directorships refers to board in which its director(s) holds multiple boards seats concurrently [21], [35]. A director is busy when they hold three or more directorship positions in other companies [21], [53], [29].

Holding concurrent seats on other boards could be beneficial to firms. Committing in many positions in different firms could signify well-connected with other directors and quality of directors. Benefits of many external positions is especially when relates to the role of director in giving advice [13], [26]. Although sitting in multiple external roles, busy directors do not add value uniformly to all boards but prioritize more important directorships [28].

On the other hand, directors holding many seats simultaneously could lead to overcommitted. Therefore, general views multiple directorships is less committing to boards role due to time constraints dividing to several positions simultaneously. Consequently, director tends to have less effective monitoring, and [16] suggested acquires less vote by shareholders. One of the indicators of activities includes the number of board meetings attended. Overcommitted director tends to attend less meeting [23], although [27] found that

Commented [A6]: Edited this part and supported with a reference

Commented [A7R6]: Added reference about why Thailand setting.

Commented [A8R6]: Reviewer comment was: The authors need to explain in details for this statement. Has this rule just been implemented in Thailand? When? Please give references to support the argument.

for statement "Thailand is an appropriate study setting since Thailand is one of developing countries in Southeast Asia. ESG reporting is a relatively new to Thailand companies."

director busyness has no direct effect on tendency to attend less meetings.

ESG Performance

ESG stands for Environmental, Social, and Governance. ESG performance is a non-financial performance that covers three aspects including Environment, Social and Governance. This performance helps investors and potential stakeholders to assess the contributions a company makes towards their concerns in the external environment. As there is a recent rise in attention towards ESG, companies experience an increased voluntary action in disclosing their involvement in ESG through sustainability reporting [45]. Awareness of ESG will have a beneficial effect on an organization's reputation, since ESG disclosure brings a level of contribution to making the firm appear credible due to their concern and involvement for the environment. Most popular sustainability reporting guidance includes GRI. Furthermore, [30] also proposes the idea of how ESG disclosures can increase firm value through the valuable trust built among stakeholders. There is cost consequences for firm to report ESG performance, fortunately its benefits outweigh its cost [53].

Firm Value

Firm value denotes firm performance that reflects valuation from market through the using of stock price. A market value of more than one, which is favorable, shows that a firm is valued higher than its book value. Following [11], this research uses Tobin's Q, market value of equity and the book value of total liability as a measure to calculate the firm's market value.

HYPOTHESES DEVELOPMENT

Busy directors and Firm Value

Unlike general views multiple directorships negatively, we argue that board with busy directors could be beneficial for firm value [21], [29], [26]. Having many positions in external firm, could signify an essential resource to gather information using the external networks [15]. Directors with more board holding accumulate experiences that aid in formulating strategy, better handle corporate issues [34]. Resource dependence theory maintains that resources accessed by busy directors are essential for the firm.

A director who sits and serves in numerous companies in one certain period can be classified as a qualified director. [16] proposed that directors with multiple assignments benefit from enhanced experience due to exposure to other firms.

Additionally, a director who holds many positions in various companies will help the director paint a favourable reputation for them and the company they are representing. Moreover, directors with multiple external positions attend more board meeting [35].

Other competing views suggested that due to the busyness experienced by directors, an individual sitting on the company's board of directors will possibly experience difficulties in carrying out supervisory and advisory roles [46]. Directors with many external directorships were time constraints among many roles. Busyness of director is detrimental to firm values [29], [6] due to ineffectiveness of supervisory functions.

This paper develops the first hypothesis as below:

H1. Board multiple directorships have impacts on Firm Value (non-directional).

ESG and Firm Value

Prior studies have documented the positive impact of ESG performance on firm value. Some of studies are in developed countries, such as the USA [7], the UK [30], [3], emerging countries, such as Malaysia [52], [39], [11], China [17], India [32] or both developed and developing countries [53], [10]. Firms with high ESG performance experienced a higher financial performance than firms with low ESG performance. Hypothetically, higher levels of ESG awareness and commitment will increase firm efficiency and reputation which will indirectly lower agency costs and problems, leading to higher firm performance. Firms that have higher ESG performance exhibit better profitability [31], therefore increasing firm value. Firms that have higher ESG disclosures reduces information symmetry and agency cost for investors [53]. High ESG performance represents higher accommodation of stakeholders' interest through environmental, social and governance metrics, thus supported by stakeholder theory. However, some recent studies have expressed a different perspective where ESG scores show no significant value towards firm performance [9], and other study show negative effect to profitability [33]. Despite mixed results, this study believes that the high sense of responsibility towards its surroundings will help firm value substantially grow. Therefore, the second hypothesis is:

H2. ESG Score brings positive impact towards Firm Value.

RESEARCH METHOD

Sample

This study examines Thailand as one of Southeast Asia's (ASEAN) countries with a

Commented [A9]: The measurement should be in methods section. Please move this paragraph.

Commented [A10R9]: done

Commented [A12]: Reviewer comment was: "Is this study use 3 theories to support the hypotheses? Please collaborate the resource dependence theory and stakeholder theory in the hypotheses development."

Commented [A13R12]: Action: deleted part of busyness hypothesis.

Commented [A14]: Linking stakeholder theory in hypothesis

Commented [A11]: Linking resource dependence theory in hypothesis

currently developing economy, in a 5-year time frame from 2018 - 2022. The observations encompass non-financial firms publicly listed in SET. Financial firms were excluded from the sample because they have strict and special regulations as well as accounting standards which could not be generalized with other sectors [45]. There are 793 non-financial publicly listed companies in Thailand in Refinitiv Database when data was collected in 2023. Upon eliminating firms that do not have ESG score for 5 consecutive years it was yielded 33 firms, then 5 firms were removed

due to inaccessible annual report that contain director profile data. Financial information was sourced from Refinitiv database and in the case of missing data, were manually completed from annual report. The final sample was 28 firms with board information in the annual report resulting in a total of 140 firm-year observations, as shown in Table 1. Sectors with most firms having complete ESG score in Refinitiv are utilities, energy, consumer staples and materials as shown in Table 2.

Table 1. Sample Selection

Sampling criteria	Total
Non-financial listed in IDX between 2018 and 2022	793
Less: Firms with non-consecutive 5 years of ESG score	(760)
Less: Firms with insufficient director profile data in annual reports	(5)
Number of firms that fulfill the criterion	28
Final sample (28 firms x 5 years)	140 observations

Table 2. Sample Based on Industry

GICS Sector Code	GICS Sector Name	No. of Firms	Data	Percentage
55	Utilities	5	25	17.86%
10	Energy	4	20	14.29%
30	Consumer Staples	4	20	14.29%
15	Materials	3	15	10.71%
20	Industrials	2	10	7.14%
25	Consumer Discretionary	2	10	7.14%
35	Health Care	2	10	7.14%
45	Information Technology	2	10	7.14%
50	Communication Services	2	10	7.14%
60	Real Estate	2	10	7.14%
	Total	28	140	100.00%

Source: Research Data (Processed)

Measurement of Variables

Multiple directorships

Prior research has documented different perspectives in measuring multiple directorships such as average number of multiple seats divided by total number of directors [48]; coded a dummy variable '1' when a director is busy (holds 3 or more outside directorships) [46]; dummy coded as one if 50% or more of firm's independent directors are busy (seat on two or more positions) [21], or average number of directors on outside companies by total directors [38], number of busy independent directors divided by total independent director size (busy is serve on three or more firms) [16].

Follow [41] [12], [49], this study uses the percentage of busy directors per number of board members. A director is considered busy when he/she holds 3 or more directorships in other public-listed companies. Unlike [35], this research excluded positions in private firms, foundations, charities,

and non-profit organizations [29], and measured multiple directorships at board level as:

$$\text{Multiple directorships} = \left(\frac{\text{Total busy directors}}{\text{Board size}} \right) \times 100\% \quad (1)$$

Firm Value

This paper uses market capitalization from the Refinitiv data [34] as the market value of total equity. Firm value is measured by dividing the total assets as the representation of the firm's intrinsic value as shown:

$$\text{Tobin's Q} = \left(\frac{\text{Total market value} + \text{total book value of liabilities}}{\text{Total book value of assets}} \right) \quad (2)$$

Control Variables

Control variables used in this study are firm size (F_SIZE), firm age (F_AGE), board size (B_SIZE), return on assets (ROA), and a dummy

Commented [A15]: Move from literature review section to measurement (method) section

Commented [A16R15]: Done - moved from literature review to method section.

Commented [A17]: The measurement should be in methods section. Please move this sentence.

Commented [A18R17]: Done, moved to method section

Commented [A19R17]: Reviewer comment was: "The measurement should be in methods section. Please move this paragraph."

Covid variable (COV) to control for Covid pandemic during the years 2020–2021. Firm size represents the company's scope, can be measured by total assets, total number of employees. In this research Firm size is measured by natural logarithm of total assets [25], [24]. Bigger firms with larger assets normally have higher visibility to attract investor and have ability to raise fund [36], therefore tend to have higher value compared to smaller firms. Firm age is calculated by deducting the observation year from the IPO year [49]. Firm ages denote the number of years a company has been listed on the stock exchange market. Board size is the number of directors on the board. This paper uses ROA to control the ability of firms in generating net income based on total assets, which is calculated by income before taxes divided by total assets x 100%. ROA demonstrates management's skill and willingness to employ business assets that belong to shareholders and is a common firm level control variable [2]. Since two of five observations years happened during Covid-19 pandemic, COV variable were used. COV is dummy variable, coded by 1 for COVID years (2020 and 2021), otherwise 0.

The Model of Analysis

This study examines the effect of multiple directorships and ESG score to firm value using the following model:

$$Tob_Q_{i,t} = \alpha + \beta_1 B_BUSY_{i,t} + \beta_2 ESG_{i,t} + \beta_3 F_SIZE_{i,t} + \beta_4 F_AGE_{i,t} + \beta_5 B_SIZE_{i,t} + \beta_6 ROA_{i,t} + \beta_7 COV_{i,t} + \varepsilon \quad (3)$$

where
 $Tob_Q_{i,t}$ = Firm Value of firm i in year t
 $B_BUSY_{i,t}$ = Multiple directorships of firm i in year t
 $ESG_{i,t}$ = ESG Score of firm i in year t
 $F_SIZE_{i,t}$ = Firm size of firm i in year t
 $F_AGE_{i,t}$ = Firm age of firm i in year t
 $B_SIZE_{i,t}$ = Board size of firm i in year t
 $ROA_{i,t}$ = Return on Asset of firm i in year t
 $COV_{i,t}$ = Covid Year of firm i in year t

Data Analysis Technique

This research uses a quantitative approach using balanced panel data. Secondary data were sourced from annual report and Refinitiv database. ESG score is sourced from Refinitiv database since it has been one of major business databases, with more than 450 ESG metrics [37], has extensive data covering over 15,500 companies and has ESG data since 2002 [42]. Refinitiv scores was based on publicly available data and includes ten main themes, such as emissions, environmental product innovation, human rights, diversity and inclusion, shareholders.

Data in this study underwent descriptive statistics, correlation test, and panel data regression. Using descriptive statistics, this research summarized the mean (average), standard deviation, minimum, and maximum of the data collected. In addition to descriptive statistics, this study performed Pearson correlation test to observe relationships among the variables examined.

Further, model specification was conducted to determine the most ideal panel model is either Fixed Effect model (FEM), Random Effect model (REM) or Ordinary Least Square (OLS). This analysis was completed by running the Chow test, Hausman test and Breusch-Pagan LM test. Chow test will show either OLS or FEM model best fits data. If p-value < 0.05 then the best model is FEM. Hausman test was carried out to determine if the best model is Random Effect model (REM) or FEM. If the p-value of Hausman test < 0.05 then the best model is FEM. Breusch-Pagan LM test was formed to choose between OLS or REM, in which if the p-value < 0.05 then REM is the best model. Multicollinearity was done to observe if some independent variables are highly correlated with others.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Table 3 shows the statistics descriptive of data being examined while Table 4 shows the occurrence of Covid-19 dummy data. The dependent variable Tob_Q has a mean of 2.081 with the minimum of 0.8289 (PTT in 2022) and maximum 11.78 (DELTA in 2022). This indicated that in average the studied firms have twice market value compared to their book value, which is higher than in previous study in Thailand data [14]. In 2023 when data was collected, 760 firms (95.8%) of 793 publicly listed non-financial firms in Thai stock exchange do not have complete 5-year consecutive ESG score in Refinitiv. Average ESG scores for all 28 companies is 0.6376 with the lowest score for ESG is 0.1442 and the highest ESG score is 0.9212. This demonstrates that amongst Thai non-financial companies that have full 5 year ESG score during study period, there is a significant distance between the highest and lowest ESG score. Board busyness B_BUSY shows an average busyness of the board of 0.2416 which means on average firms have 24% of members of boards hold at least 3 or more directorships simultaneously.

For the control variables, firm size shows an average of 25.99 with the minimum and maximum values of 22.98 and 28.86, respectively. This indicates no high variation between the lowest and highest sampled firm. In average, studied firms are 23.18 years since IPO. The youngest 1 year is GULF in 2018 and the oldest 47 years is BJC in 2022 and SCC in 2022. The mean board size of 13.16 directors, it indicated that the Thai listed companies studied

Commented [A20]: Change format from comma to dot (English style)

Commented [A21]: Change format from "comma" to "dot"

have 13 members on board, this is higher than previous study with mean 10.694 [14]. The smallest board size is 9 with the largest board size of 19 (TOP in 2018-2021). The mean value for the last control variable, ROA, is 0.05922, similar with previous result of 0.061 [14]. It means that on average the sampled firms yield 6 per cent net income over their

assets. A negative ROA generally indicates that a company is suffering a loss and not generating income/profits, which stems from a company not being able to turn their investments towards profits. 35 percent of the data analyzed was from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Table 3. Descriptive Statistics

Variables	N	Mean	Std. Dev.	Min.	Max.
Tob_Q	140	2.081	1.763	0.829	11.78
ESG	140	0.638	0.1637	0.144	0.921
B_BUSY	140	0.242	0.1541	0.000	0.636
F_SIZE	140	25.99	1.212	22.98	28.86
F_AGE	140	23.18	11.11	1.000	47.00
B_SIZE	140	13.16	2.689	9.000	19.00
ROA	140	0.059	0.049	-0.069	0.249

Table 4. Frequency of Dummy Data

COVID	Frequency	Percentage
1	56	40%
0	84	60%
Total	140	100%

Result in Table 5 indicates that there are no strong correlations among independent variables, supported multicollinearity test result. The multicollinearity test in Table 5 shows that the model is free from multicollinearity issue since all VIFs do not exceed 10.

Table 6 displays that the best model is REM since REM was resulted from Hausman and Breush-Pagan LM test. REM then was tested for homoscedasticity and the result in Table 6 indicates that REM is free from heteroscedasticity issue.

Table 5. Correlation results and Multicollinearity Test

	Tob_Q	B_BUSY	ESG	F_SIZE	F_AGE	B_SIZE	ROA	COV	VIF	1/VIF
Tob_Q	1.000									
B_BUSY	0.1242	1.000							1.13	0.8825
ESG	-0.0756	-0.0721	1.000						1.47	0.6809
F_SIZE	-0.5068	-0.1086	0.4414	1.000					1.83	0.5469
F_AGE	-0.0265	0.2568	0.2900	0.0247	1.000				1.22	0.8170
B_SIZE	-0.4449	-0.1965	0.0508	0.5225	-0.1322	1.000			1.55	0.6461
ROA	0.5819	0.0848	-0.0470	-0.2269	0.1325	-0.2708	1.000		1.17	0.8570
COV	0.0043	0.0568	0.0804	0.0385	0.0369	0.0207	-0.2222	1.000	1.07	0.9368

Commented [A22]: Combine 2 tables into one table

Table 6. Summary of Panel specification and heteroscedasticity tests

	Tob_Q	Result
	<i>p-values</i>	
Chow test	Prob > F = 0.0000	Fixed effect
Hausman test	Prob > chi2 = 0.1656	Random effect
Breusch-Pagan LM test	Prob > chi2 = 0.0000	Random effect

Heteroskedasticity test Prob > chi2 = 0.0001 homoscedasticity

Note: heteroscedasticity and collinearity were based on Random effect model with Tob_Q as dependent variable

Commented [A23]: Delete 'mean VIF'

Table 7 shows ESG score has a positive impact on Tobin's Q at 10% significance level ($\beta = 1.6644$, $p\text{-value} = 0.086$), thus H2 is supported. B_Busy has a positive and not significant ($\beta = 1.0088$, $p\text{-value} = 0.253$) towards Tob_Q, thus H1 is rejected. Control variables of F_SIZE and COV were positive and significant on Tob_Q. On the

contrary, ROA has negative effects, with both at 1% significance. Other control variables did not affect Tob_Q.

Discussion

Thailand SEC [47] has specified that board size is to be minimum of 5 and maximum of 12. The same source stated that a director can hold multiple director seats in a maximum of 5 other public listed companies, although no specific limitations on the number of positions a director can hold at one time. This study shows that firms have demonstrated compliance on the aspect of minimum board size, all firms have busy directors on board, which have more than 3 other external directorships, although some firms do not have busy directors in some of year. While director's busyness was analyzed at firm level, we found that in rare cases some directors were as busy as holding 9 seats in external firms. Further research can investigate details on the role of director age and busyness.

Table 7. Hypotheses results with REM

	Coefficient	p-value
Const	15.3990	0.000 ***
B_BUSY	1.0088	0.253
ESG	1.6644	0.086 *
F_SIZE	-.5437	0.001 ***
F_AGE	-.0227	0.137
B_SIZE	-.0775	0.232
ROA	15.332	0.000 ***
COV	.3731	0.046 **
R ²	0.5503	
N	140	

Notes: hypotheses result with T26 Q as dependent variable. ***, **, and * express significance level of 1%, 5%, and 10%, respectively.

The results indicate that having concurrent roles at various companies does not impact firm value, thus rejecting resource dependence theory. This result contradict research of [21] which found positive impact of board busyness to firm value especially in young firms. The experiences, and information or industry insight from holding multiple roles of external directors do [12] seem to be valued by the market as represented by Tobin's Q. The finding of impact of multiple directorships on firm value also do [29] support extant studies [19], [6], that found negative association between multiple roles of directors and firm value. This might be caused by the short times series and relatively small data set for merely 28 companies from different industries. Secondly, there might be a national cultural value that underlies as to why some directors were invited to various external roles, rather than the perspective of investors.

Further, this result shows that ESG scores do contribute positively towards a business' valuation. Although sustainability reporting is not mandatory [5] most countries, voluntary ESG disclosure still shows a positive correlation with firm performance in developing countries [39], [11]. Our results are consistent with prior studies [3], [52], [7], [10], [17], [32]. Further, it confirms the stakeholder theory in

explaining the essential of including stakeholders' inter [6] through ESG score towards valuation.

As for the controlling variables, [6] firm size shows a negative significant impact on Tobin's Q. On the other hand, ROA shows a positive significant correlation on Tobin's Q. This aligns with the justification where if a firm can utilize and enhance their assets, firm value will be favorably [40] acted. Like ROA, COV dummy variable shows a positive significant relationship towards Tobin's Q.

This paper suggests that firms with a higher ESG score in Refinitiv are valued higher than those with lower ESG score. Therefore, it implies that ESG performance conducted by companies has to a certain level been perceived by the market to have accommodate interests of various related stakeholders. In other words, it pays off to invest in ESG and to disclose it. This result can benefit various stakeholders in developing countries, not only Thailand, but possibly other countries with similar characteristics in Southeast Asia and other regions. Through the results, we recommend companies to disclose more ESG performance in Refinitiv database since it enhances firm value.

CONCLUSIONS

Connecting sustainability performance, and firm board multiple directorships and firm market performance, this study sheds light towards how different variables contribute to firm value. Using the dataset of Thai listed non-financial firms during the 5-year period from 2018 to 2022, ESG score is found to impact company value positively, while director busyness was found do not affect firm value. This study's finding supports the stakeholder theory by offering empirical evidence that increasing ESG score in Refinitiv database enhances firm value.

This study is important as the result informs the managers that by improving ESG reporting of firms' sustainability practice thus its visibility to rater and investors, firms can enhance their market value. Since ESG performance is valued by market, policy makers can specify simple guideline and incentive for companies to implement and report their sustainability practices.

Like any other studies, this paper also has its limitations. The first notable limitation resides in the set of data analyzed, which [20] vastly smaller compared to other studies held. It is also important to note that since the sample of this paper focuses on one developing country within Southeast Asia, these results might not be generalized to other research conducted in developed economies. Moreover, the data was not collected to distinguish the number of multiple seats a director had concurrently.

Future research could investigate using more recent data from Thailand which could show the possibility of more firms with ESG scores, as well as

Commented [A24]: It should show only REM model since REM is the best model

Commented [A25R24]: Done, only show REM and deleted other model

Commented [A26]: The authors need to add the implications of this study.

Commented [A27]: implications

comparative studies with other countries. Further, studies could expand the sample towards other developing economies to further solidify this paper's findings. In addition, more control variables could be utilized at individual level, such as director

experience, educational background; and firm level (firm growth, leverage). Changing or adding other dependent variables mirroring the firm's value, such as firm profitability, could help strengthen the findings and support the findings in this paper.

REFERENCES

- [1] Aboud, A., & Diab, A. (2018). The impact of social, environmental and corporate governance disclosures on firm value. *Journal of Accounting in Emerging Economies*, 8(4), 442–458. <https://doi.org/10.1108/JAEE-08-2017-0079>
- [2] Negara, G., & Sukamulya, S. (2021). The Effect of Good Corporate Governance on the Market Value of Financial Sector Companies in Indonesia. *Jurnal Akuntansi Dan Keuangan*, 23(2), 83–94. <https://doi.org/10.9744/jak.23.2.83-94>
- [3] Ahmad, N., Mobarek, & Roni, N. N. (2021). Revisiting the impact of ESG on financial performance of FTSE350 UK firms: Static and dynamic panel data analysis. *Cogent Business & Management*, 7(1). <https://doi.org/10.1080/23311975.2021.1900500>
- [4] Areeni, B. A., & Hamdan, A. (2020). ESG impact on performance of US S&P 500-listed firms. *Corporate Governance: An International Journal*, 20(7), 1409–1428. <https://doi.org/10.1108/CG-06-2020-0258>
- [5] Albuquerque, R., Koskinen, Y., Yang, S., & Zhang, C. (2020). Resiliency of Environmental and Social Stocks: An Analysis of the Exogenous COVID-19 Market Crash. *The Review of Corporate Finance Studies*, 9(3), 593–621. <https://doi.org/10.1093/rcfs/cfaa011>
- [6] Alhaddad, L., Gerged, A. M., Saidat, Z., Ali Al-Qudah, A., & Aziz, T. (2022). Do multiple directorships stimulate or inhibit firm value? Evidence from an emerging economy. *International Journal of Accounting & Information Management*, 30(4), 546–562. <https://doi.org/10.1108/IJAIM-05-2022-0094>
- [7] Al-Issa, N., Khaki, A. R., Jreisat, A., Al-Mohamad, S., Fahl, D., & Limani, E. (2022). Impact of environmental, social, governance, and corporate social responsibility factors on firm's marketing expenses and firm value: A panel study of US companies. *Cogent Business & Management*, 9(1). <https://doi.org/10.1080/23311975.2022.2135214>
- [8] Assenga, M. P., Aly, D., & Hussainey, K. (2018). The impact of board characteristics on the financial performance of Tanzanian firms. *Corporate Governance: The International Journal of Business in Society*, 18(6), 1089–1106. <https://doi.org/10.1108/CG-09-2016-0174>
- [9] Atan, R., Alam, Md. M., Said, J., & Zamri, M. (2018). The impacts of environmental, social, and governance factors on firm performance. *Management of Environmental Quality: An International Journal*, 29(2), 182–194. <https://doi.org/10.1108/MEQ-03-2017-0033>
- [10] Aydoğan, M., Gülay, G., & Ergun, K. (2022). Impact of ESG performance on firm value and profitability. *Borsa İstanbul Review*, 22, S119–S127. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bir.2022.11.006>
- [11] Bakry, A. E. A., Azhar, Z., & Kishan, K. (2023). The effects of amended sustainability reporting requirements on corporate social responsibility reporting and firm value: the moderating role of assurance. *Journal of Financial Reporting and Accounting*. <https://doi.org/10.1108/JFRA-11-2022-0414>
- [12] Rafshan, A., & Hesarzadeh, R. (2022). Board busyness and firm productivity. *Personnel Review*, 51(3), 351–365. <https://doi.org/10.1108/PR-07-2019-0375>
- [13] Boivie, S., Withers, M. C., Graffin, S. D., & Corley, K. G. (2021). Corporate directors' implicit theories of the roles and duties of boards. *Strategic Management Journal*, 42(9), 1662–1695. <https://doi.org/10.1002/smj.3320>
- [14] Buachoom, W. (2018). How Do Board Structures of Thai Firms Influence on Different Quantile Levels of Firm Performance? *Advances in Pacific Basin Business, Economics and Finance*, 6, 157–189. <https://doi.org/10.1108/s2514-46502018000006004>
- [15] Chee, K. D., & Tham, Y. H. (2021). The role of directors with multiple board seats and earning quality: A Singapore context. *Journal of Corporate Accounting & Finance*, 32(1), 31–47. <https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1002/jcaf.22474>
- [16] Chen, K. D., & Guay, W. R. (2020). Busy Directors and Shareholder Satisfaction.

- Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis*, 55(7), 2181–2210. <https://doi.org/10.1017/S0022109019000590>
- [17] Cheng, R., Kim, H., & Ryu, D. (2023). ESG performance and firm value in the Chinese market. *Investment Analysts Journal*, 1–15. <https://doi.org/10.1080/10293523.2023.2218124>
- [18] Ciftci, I., Tatoglu, E., Wood, G., Demirbag, M., & Zaim, S. (2019). Corporate governance and firm performance in emerging markets: Evidence from Turkey. *International Business Review*, 28(1), 90–103. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ibusrev.2018.08.004>
- [19] Daniliuc, S., Li, L., & Wee, M. (2021). Busy directors and firm performance: a replication and extension of Hauser (2018). *Accounting & Finance*, 61(S1), 1415–1423. <https://doi.org/10.1111/acfi.12631>
- [20] Diaz, V., Ibrushi, D., & Zhao, J. (2021). Reconsidering systematic factors during the Covid-19 pandemic – The rising importance of ESG. *Finance Research Letters*, 38, 101870. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.frl.2020.101870>
- [21] Ferris, S. P., Jayaraman, N., & Liao, M.-Y. (2020). *Better Directors or distracted Directors? An International Analysis of Busy Boards*. <https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.gfj.2018.05.006>
- [22] Freeman, E., Harrison, J. S., Wicks, A. C., Parmar, B. L., & de Colle, S. (2010). *Stakeholder Theory: The State of the Art*. Cambridge University Press.
- [23] Gray, S., & Nowland, J. (2018). Director workloads, attendance and firm performance. *Accounting Research Journal*, 31(2), 214–231. <https://doi.org/10.1108/ARJ-02-2016-0023>
- [24] Hatane, S. E., Winoto, J., Tarigan, J., & Jie, F. (2023). Working capital management and board diversity towards firm performances in Indonesia's LQ45. *Journal of Accounting in Emerging Economies*, 13(2), 276–299. <https://doi.org/10.1108/JAEE-11-2018-0130>
- [25] Juniarti, J., Beoang, C. F., Prayogo, M. F. S., & Samosir, P. A. (2021). Business Strategy and Environmental Performance. *Jurnal Akuntansi Dan Keuangan*, 23(2), 95–104. <https://doi.org/10.9744/jak.23.2.95-104>
- [26] Kim, K. (2022). When are busy boards beneficial? *The Quarterly Review of Economics and Finance*, 86, 437–454. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.qref.2022.08.008>
- [27] Latif, B., Voordeckers, W., & Lambrechts, F. (2024). Overcommitted to show up in the board? The moderating effect of ownership. *Review of Managerial Science*, 18(1), 131–160. <https://doi.org/10.1007/s11846-022-00616-7>
- [28] Le, Q., Vafaei, A., Ahmed, K., & Kutubi, S. (2022). Independent directors' reputation incentives and firm performance – an Australian perspective. *Pacific-Basin Finance Journal*, 72, 101709. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pacfin.2022.101709>
- [29] Lee, K.-W., & Lok, C.-L. (2020). Busy Boards, Firm Performance and Operating Risk. *Asian Academy of Management Journal of Accounting and Finance*, 16(2), 1–21. <https://doi.org/10.21315/aamjaf2020.16.2.1>
- [30] Li, Y., Gong, M., Zhang, X.-Y., & Koh, L. (2018). The impact of environmental, social, and governance disclosure on firm value: The role of CEO power. *The British Accounting Review*, 50(1), 60–75. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bar.2017.09.007>
- [31] Lu, J., & Khan, S. (2023). Are sustainable firms more profitable during COVID-19? Recent global evidence of firms in developed and emerging economies. *Asian Review of Accounting*, 31(1), 57–85. <https://doi.org/10.1108/ARA-04-2022-0102>
- [32] Maji, S. G., & Lohia, P. (2023). Environmental, social and governance (ESG) performance and firm performance in India. *Society and Business Review*, 18(1), 175–194. <https://doi.org/10.1108/SBR-06-2022-0162>
- [33] Makridou, G., Doumpos, M., & Lemonakis, C. (2023). Relationship between ESG and corporate financial performance in the energy sector: empirical evidence from European companies. *International Journal of Energy Sector Management*. <https://doi.org/10.1108/IJESM-01-2023-0012>
- [34] Manna, A., Sahu, T. N., & Pandey, K. D. (2020). Board size, multiple directorship performance of India listed firms. *International Journal of Economics and Business Research*, 19(2).
- [35] Mans-Kemp, N., Viviers, S., & Weir, J. (2020). Investigating the extent and impact of director overboardedness using a comprehensive measure. *Corporate Governance: The International Journal of Business in Society*, 20(5), 821–836. <https://doi.org/10.1108/CG-07-2019-0234>

- [36] Melinda, A., & Wardhani, R. (2020). The Effect of Environmental, Social, Governance, and Controversies on Firms' Value: Evidence from Asia. In *Advanced Issues in the Economics of Emerging Markets International Symposia in Economic Theory and Econometrics* (pp. 147–173). <https://doi.org/10.1108/S1571-038620200000027011>
- [37] Menicucci, E., & Paolucci, G. (2023). ESG dimensions and bank performance: an empirical investigation in Italy. *Corporate Governance: The International Journal of Business in Society*, 23(3), 563–586.
- [38] Mishra, A. K., Jain, S., & Manogna, R. L. (2021). Does corporate governance characteristics influence firm performance in India? Empirical evidence using dynamic panel data analysis. *International Journal of Disclosure and Governance*, 18(1), 71–82. <https://doi.org/10.1057/s41310-020-00098-7>
- [39] Mohammad, W. M. W., & Wasiuzzaman, S. (2021). Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) disclosure, competitive advantage and performance of firms in Malaysia. *Cleaner Environmental Systems*, 2, 100015. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cesys.2021.100015>
- [40] Pan, F. (2021, May 13). ESG Disclosure and Performance in Southeast Asia. Retrieved 13 May 2024, from <https://www.sustainalytics.com/esg-research/resource/investors-esg-blog/esg-disclosure-and-performance-in-southeast-asia>
- [41] Pfeffer, J., & Salancik, G. (2015). External control of organizations—Resource dependence perspective. In *Organizational behavior 2* (pp. 373–388). Routledge.
- [42] Refinitiv. (2023, December). Environmental, social and governance scores from LSEG. Retrieved 13 May 2024, from https://www.lseg.com/content/dam/data-analytics/en_us/documents/methodology/lseg-esg-scores-methodology.pdf?elqCampaignId=13827
- [43] Reguera-Alvarado, N., & Bravo, F. (2017). The effect of independent directors' characteristics on firm performance: Tenure and multiple directorships. *Research in International Business and Finance*, 41, 590–599. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ribaf.2017.04.045>
- [44] Saleh, M. W. A., Shurafa, R., Shukeri, S. N., Nour, A. I., & Maigosh, Z. S. (2020). The effect of board multiple directorships and CEO characteristics on firm performance: evidence from Palestine. *Journal of Accounting in Emerging Economies*, 10(4), 637–654. <https://doi.org/10.1108/JAEE-12-2019-0231>
- [45] Samy El-Deeb, M., Ismail, T. H., & El Banna, A. A. (2023). Does audit quality moderate the impact of environmental, social and governance disclosure on firm value? Further evidence from Egypt. *Journal of Humanities and Applied Social Sciences*, 5(4), 293–322. <https://doi.org/10.1108/JHASS-11-2022-0155>
- [46] Tan, K. M., Bany-Arifin, A. N., Kamarudin, F., & Abdul Rahim, N. (2019). Does directors' experience positively moderate the impact of board busyness on efficiency? Evidence from Asia-Pacific. *Asia-Pacific Journal of Business Administration*, 11(3), 232–250. <https://doi.org/10.1108/APJBA-01-2019-0008>
- [47] Thailand Securities and Exchange Commission. *Corporate Governance Code listed companies 2017.*, (2017).
- [48] Tham, Y. H., Sultana, N., Singh, H., & Taplin, R. (2019). Busy boards and earnings management – an Australian perspective. *Asian Review of Accounting*, 27(3), 464–486. <https://doi.org/10.1108/ARA-08-2018-0149>
- [49] Trinugroho, I., Risfandy, T., Hanafi, M. M., & Sukmana, R. (2023). Busy commissioners and firm performance: evidence from Indonesia. *International Journal of Emerging Markets*, 18(11), 5028–5048. <https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOEM-01-2020-0007>
- [50] Uhlaner, L., Massis, A. de, Jorissen, A., & Du, Y. (2021). Are outside directors on the small and medium-sized enterprise board always beneficial? Disclosure of firm-specific information in board-management relations as the missing mechanism. *Human Relations*, 74(11), 1781–1819. <https://doi.org/10.1177/0018726720932985>
- [51] Viviers, S., & Mans-Kemp, N. (2019). Director overboardedness in South Africa: evaluating the experience and busyness hypotheses. *International Journal of Disclosure and Governance*, 16(1), 68–81. <https://doi.org/10.1057/s41310-019-00057-x>
- [52] Wong, W. C., Batten, J. A., Ahmad, A. H., Mohamed-Arshad, S. B., Nordin, S., & Adzis, A. A. (2021). Does ESG certification add firm value? *Finance Research Letters*, 39, 101593. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.frl.2020.101593>

- [53] Yu, E. P., Guo, C. Q., & Luu, B. Van. (2018). Environmental, social and governance transparency and firm value. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 27(7), 987–1004. <https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.2047>

Multiple directorships ESG - JAK

ORIGINALITY REPORT

10%

SIMILARITY INDEX

8%

INTERNET SOURCES

8%

PUBLICATIONS

3%

STUDENT PAPERS

PRIMARY SOURCES

1	jurnal.uii.ac.id Internet Source	1 %
2	vdocument.in Internet Source	1 %
3	www.journalkeberlanjutan.com Internet Source	1 %
4	www.emerald.com Internet Source	<1 %
5	www.scilit.net Internet Source	<1 %
6	Submitted to University of Wales Institute, Cardiff Student Paper	<1 %
7	Egi Arvian Firmansyah, Umar Habibu Umar, Rabiu Saminu Jibril. "Investigating the effect of ESG disclosure on firm performance: The case of Saudi Arabian listed firms", Cogent Economics & Finance, 2023 Publication	<1 %

8	Irwan Trinugroho, Tastaftiyan Risfandy, Mamduh M. Hanafi, Raditya Sukmana. "Busy commissioners and firm performance: evidence from Indonesia", International Journal of Emerging Markets, 2022 Publication	<1 %
9	ouci.dntb.gov.ua Internet Source	<1 %
10	www-emerald-com-443.webvpn.sxu.edu.cn Internet Source	<1 %
11	Submitted to University of Huddersfield Student Paper	<1 %
12	Wonlop Writthym Buachoom, Yot Amornkitvikai, Omar Al Farooque, Lan Sun. "Female ownership and female directors' moderating role as corporate governance monitoring mechanisms in increasing the value of Thai family-owned firms", Gender in Management: An International Journal, 2023 Publication	<1 %
13	repository.unja.ac.id Internet Source	<1 %
14	Submitted to University of Durham Student Paper	<1 %
15	repository.fe.unj.ac.id Internet Source	<1 %

16

123dok.com

Internet Source

<1 %

17

journal.unpas.ac.id

Internet Source

<1 %

18

Ioannis Tampakoudis, Evgenia Anagnostopoulou. "The effect of mergers and acquisitions on environmental, social and governance performance and market value: Evidence from EU acquirers", Business Strategy and the Environment, 2020

Publication

<1 %

19

Julia Junxia Liu, Yu Liu. "Multiple directorships and firm performance: Evidence from independent director effort allocation in Hong Kong", Pacific-Basin Finance Journal, 2023

Publication

<1 %

20

Nkwantabisa Agyeiwaa Owusu, Francis Atta Sarpong, Nelly Joel Tchuiendem, Winnifred Coleman. "Breaking the chains of corporate compensation: Unraveling the complexities of non-executive director compensation in South Africa's boardrooms", Cogent Business & Management, 2023

Publication

<1 %

21

refpress.org

Internet Source

<1 %

22

Internet Source

<1 %

23

boris.unibe.ch

Internet Source

<1 %

24

e-journal.unair.ac.id

Internet Source

<1 %

25

jurnal.unived.ac.id

Internet Source

<1 %

26

link.springer.com

Internet Source

<1 %

27

revistacgg.org

Internet Source

<1 %

28

umt-ir.umt.edu.my:8080

Internet Source

<1 %

29

Beatrice Sarpong-Danquah, Kwasi Oko-Bensa-Agyekum, Emmanuel Opoku. "Corporate governance and the performance of manufacturing firms in Ghana: Does ownership structure matter?", Cogent Business & Management, 2022

Publication

<1 %

30

eber.uek.krakow.pl

Internet Source

<1 %

31

espace.curtin.edu.au

Internet Source

<1 %

32	journals2.ums.ac.id Internet Source	<1 %
33	plj.ac.id Internet Source	<1 %
34	publisher.unimas.my Internet Source	<1 %
35	repository.up.ac.za Internet Source	<1 %
36	researchbank.swinburne.edu.au Internet Source	<1 %
37	www.journals.uchicago.edu Internet Source	<1 %
38	www.researchsquare.com Internet Source	<1 %
39	Mohamed Samy El-Deeb, Tariq H. Ismail, Alia Adel El Banna. "Does audit quality moderate the impact of environmental, social and governance disclosure on firm value? Further evidence from Egypt", Journal of Humanities and Applied Social Sciences, 2023 Publication	<1 %
40	Shahrina Liza Salisi, Corina Joseph, Roshima Said. "Chapter 9 The Relationship Between Corporate Governance Mechanisms and Firm's Performance Pre and Post-Malaysian	<1 %

Corporate Code Governance 2017: The Moderating Effect of Women Directors on Board", Springer Science and Business Media LLC, 2024

Publication

41

Yeut Hong Tham. "A global review of the literature on and proxies of busy boards and audit committees", Asian Review of Accounting, 2023

Publication

<1 %

42

Ameneh Bazrafshan, Reza Hesarzadeh. "Board busyness and firm productivity", Personnel Review, 2021

Publication

<1 %

43

Khar Mang Tan, A.N. Bany-Arifin, Fakarudin Kamarudin, Norhuda Abdul Rahim. "Does directors' experience positively moderate the impact of board busyness on firm efficiency? Evidence from Asia-Pacific", Asia-Pacific Journal of Business Administration, 2019

Publication

<1 %

44

Ni Putu Gita Rahmaniati, Erni Ekawati. "The role of Indonesian regulators on the effectiveness of ESG implementation in improving firms' non-financial performance", Cogent Business & Management, 2024

Publication

<1 %

45

Stefania Sylos Labini, Alexander Kostyuk,
Dmytro Govorun. "Corporate governance: An
interdisciplinary outlook in the wake of
pandemic", Virtus Interpress, 2020

Publication

<1 %

Exclude quotes On

Exclude matches Off

Exclude bibliography On